ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 29, 2013
3:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson, Vice Chair
Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Anna Faircl ough

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Cick Bishop
Senator Lesil MQiire
Senator Hollis French

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  AGDC FI NANCI NG AND OWNERSHI P MODELS ASSOCI ATED
W TH GAS MEGAPRQIECTS

- HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 71

"An Act relating to the filing date for the final quarterly
paynment of, and to the assessnent of penalties under, the
fishery resource | anding tax."

- MOVED SB 71 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE RESCLUTION NO. 5

Requesting that the North Pacific Fishery Managenent Counci
take action to reduce the quantity of Chinook sal non by-catch in
the Gulf of Alaska and Bering Sea trawl fisheries by setting new
limts in the Gulf of Alaska traw fisheries and |lowering the
existing limts in the Qulf of Alaska and Bering Sea pollock
fisheries to at least half of the current limts.

- MOVED CSSR 5(RES) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 71
SHORT TI TLE: PAYMENT OF FI SHERY RESOURCE LANDI NG TAX

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 29, 2013



SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) M CCl CHE

03/ 11/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 11/ 13 (S) RES, FIN

03/ 27/ 13 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 27/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 13 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 29/ 13 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SR 5
SHORT TI TLE: CHI NOOK BY- CATCH LIM TS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) M CCl CHE

03/ 18/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 13 (S) RES
03/ 29/ 13 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

ANG E VWHI TMAN, representing herself
Bet hel , Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

PETE WEDI N, Advocate

Al aska Mari ne Conservation Counci
Homer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

JULI E BONNEY, Executive Director
Al aska Groundfi sh Data Bank
Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not voice a position statement on SR 5.

She suggested that changes be nade to SR 5.

STEVEN BRANSON, Advocate

Cr ewrenber s Associ ati on

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

TERRY HAI NES, representing hinself
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

BECCA ROBBI NS @ SCLAI R, Seni or Fisheries Advisor
Yukon Ri ver Drainage Fisheries Association
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2-

March 29, 2013



DAVE BEEBE, representing hinself
Kupr eanof, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

TIM SM TH, Presi dent

Norme Fi sherman's Associ ation

Norme, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

STEPHANI E MADSEN, Executive Director

At -sea Processors Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position on SR 5.

Rl CKY GEASE, Executive Director

Kenai Ri ver Sportfishing Association
Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SR 5.

JOE DUBLER, Vice President and CFO

Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview on the financing and
owner shi p nodel s associ ated wi th megaproj ects.

ANGELA RODELL, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview on the financing and
owner shi p nodel s associ ated wi th megaproj ects.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:32:12 PM

CHAIR CATHY QESSEL called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Dyson, Mcciche, Fairclough, and Chair
G essel .

SB_ 71- PAYMENT OF FI SHERY RESOURCE LANDI NG TAX

3:32:36 PM

CHAIR G ESSEL announced SB 71 to be up for consideration. She
stated that public testinony had been conpleted and asked for
concl uding comments from nenbers or the bill's sponsor.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2013



SENATOR DYSON noved to report SB 71, [l abel ed 28-LS0594\ A], from
committee wth attached fiscal not e(s) and i ndi vi dual
recomendati ons.

CHAI R G ESSEL announced that w thout objection, SB 71 noved from
t he Senate Resources Standing Conmtt ee.

3:33:17 PM
CHAI R G ESSEL announced that the commttee would stand at ease.

SR 5-CH NOCK BY- CATCH LIM TS

3:.33: 27 PM
CHAI R G ESSEL announced that SR 5 was up for consideration.

SENATOR M CCICHE noved to adopt Commttee Substitute (CS),
[l abel ed 28-LS0568\C], as the working docunent. He asked prior
to adoption that one change be nmade on page 3, line 21, to
delete the word "require” and insert the word "encourage."

CHAIR G ESSEL, hearing no objection, stated that the CS was
adopted. She asked if Senator M cciche would like to present the
resol ution.

SENATOR M CClI CHE, speaking as prine sponsor, introduced the
resolution with the follow ng statenent:

Qur recreational, subsi st ence, and commer ci al
fisheries had faced dramatic short falls of Chinook
salmon in recent years, it has <caused a lot of
hardshi ps for Al aska residents. The economc loss is
due to a |ow abundance of Chinook salnon, in 2012
alone in sport and commercial fisheries in Al aska were
over $34 nmillion, not including the significant
effects on subsistence and personal-use resource
users.

An exanple, in your district and mne, and |ast sumer
| was the mayor of a sport fishing town of Sol dotna,
|'m also a commercial fisherman in Cook Inlet, but it
began as a very prom sing year throughout the state,
and ended in an econom c disaster, many not know ng
how they would get through the winter. They pulled a
synposi um toget her | ast year and they are working on a
lot of the gaps on understanding how to maintain
sust ai nabl e stocks of Chinook salnon throughout the
state. But, one of the problens facing us is salnon

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2013



by-catch in the Bering Sea and @ulf of Alaska traw -
fisheries. According to a 2013 report by the North
Pacific Fisheries Managenent Council, the five year
average total for Chinook salnon by-catch in these
fisheries was 40,621 fish. | am not blamng the
failure of our Chinook salnon fisheries on the
trawmers, | want that perfectly clear. But those fish
if they had not intercepted would have returned to
Al aska waters and provided harvest opportunities as
wel | as the escapenent we need.

This resolution sinply asks the North Pacific
Fi sheri es Managenent Council to take action to reduce
the level of Chinook by-catch in the Bering Sea and
the Gulf of Alaska traw fisheries to at |east half of
the current limts. In this time of |ow king sal non
abundance, it is critical that unintended nortality be
reduced and this resolution is an attenpt to address a
known cause of substantial nortality and help restore
strong king salmon runs in our rivers. In a state
where folks seem to really enjoy fighting over fish,
support of this resolution represents one of the rare
i ncidences of an issue where all fishing Al askans are
united. In your packets you wll see support from
commercial support and subsistent wusers form around
the state including the Association of Village Counci
Presidents, the Tanana Chiefs Conference, the Yukon
Ri ver Drainage Fisheries Association, Kenai Peninsula
Borough Assenbly, Cooper Landing Advisory Comittee,
Al aska Marine Conservation Council, the Kenaitze
Indian Tribe, and | have a list of individuals that
have al so comrented favorably.

Madam Chair, this resolution is not about blanme, since
| do not believe any type of gear-type of commerci al
fishing, sport fishing, or subsistence fishing is
responsible for the low abundance of Chi nook
fisheries. | honestly believe that traw fisheries
have worked very hard to reduce Chinook by-catch. This
resolution is sinply about returning as many Chi nook
to our river systenms to spawn as possible to hopefully
allow our natural cycles to return to our river
systens and return themto systens of abundance, every
fish mtters. Wiile our constituents suffer from
sport, commercial, and subsistence closures, and our
| odges suffer from cancelations or sinply asking for
the trawl fisheries and individual trawl fishing boats

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2013



to do better, the best they can. For exanple, the
hi ghest boat so far this year has reported catching
980 Chinook salnon, which is eight tinmes nore King
salnon then all of the fish catch by sport fishernman
on the Kenai River system last summer, and there are
three quarters left to go in the year. This resolution
i s about spreading the effort.

Madam Chair, you and | faced 450 of the comerci al
fishing famlies in our two districts on the Kenai
that were out of work last sumer. Wile sport
fishing, subsistence, and comercial fisherman were
severely restricted throughout the state, the traw
fisheries were fishing as usual w thout absorbing much
of the economc challenge of the other fisheries and
fishermen. This resolution sinply asks nore fisheries
to share the burden of the road to recovery for
Al aska's coastal runs of Chinook sal nobn

CHAI R G ESSEL opened public testinony.

3:39: 08 PM

ANG E WHI TMAN, representing herself, Bethel, Alaska, said the
issue was one of injustice with one group allowed to legally
waste Alaska's salnmon resource while the Kuskokwim region's
residents were severely restricted, issued citations, nade to
appear in court, and paid fines. She continued that it was great
to have the resolution and thanked Senator M cciche, because the
Bet hel region needed the reduction in salnmon by-catch. She
stated that it was too bad that other areas of the state were
affected by the incredible by-catch nunbers. She said the Bethel
region had to fight for reduction of interception of their
sal non resources back in 2004 regarding Area-M and a few years
|ater for the high seas traw fisheries waste ternmed "by-catch."
She stated that it was too bad that so nuch attention had to be
placed on the by-catch problem when so nany other problens
require attention; such as the high cost of I|iving expenses,
drug abuse, and school educational. She stressed that she was
trying to word her statement in such a way that it would
resonate with the legislators until the injustice was corrected.
She said she was trying to assure that the Bethel region had
their dried fish and other subsistence which Chinook salnon
provi ded. She enphasized that a dollar value could not be placed
on the Chinook sal non and noted that regional grocery stores did
not sell the bounty that Chinook salnon provided the Bethel
region. She explained that fisheries disaster declarations only
repl aced busi ness associated | osses, but not the |osses incurred

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2013



by hundreds of individuals who went wi thout Chinook sal non |ast
summer. She said while her region's sal non resources were wasted
on the high seas, the Bethel area was told to conserve and not
to fish. She noted that there were |ow nunbers of returning
Chi nook sal non and asked that the Bethel region's resources be
returned to them She stated that SR 5 was a worthy resol ution
and asked the legislature to put an end to the waste of the
region' s precious salnon resource.

3:43:19 PM

PETE WEDI N, Advocate, Al aska Marine Conservation Council (AMCC),
Honer, Al aska, said AMCC was a fam |y of seafood harvesters from
all over Alaska, including: fishernen, subsistence harvesters,
mari ne scientists, small business owners, and famlies. He said
our ways of Ilife, livelihoods, and |ocal econonm es depend on
productive ocean. He said AMCC believed that the coastal
residents have a valuable and unique perspective on nmarine
ecosystem wth a right to meani ngf ul and influential
participation in fishery managenent decisions. He stated that
AMCC t hanked Senator M cciche for introducing SR 5.

He said the @ilf of Al aska non-pollock trawl fishery operated
wi t hout a Chinook sal non by-catch-cap. He noted that the North
Pacific Fisheries Mnagenent Council (NPFMC) set a 2012 by-
catch-cap on the Pollock fishery that was higher than the ten
year average. He explained that a 25,000 Chinook salnon cap
woul d prevent the high by-catch of 54,000 in 2010, but the cap
still would not represent a neaningful reduction. He indicated
that a 5,000 fish-cap on the non-pollock fleet would be the best
choice to reduce the waste of the Chinook salnon. He said SR 5
addressed what AMCC believed to be the best alternative, given
the notion before NPFMC, by placing a cap on the non-pollock
trawl fishery in the GQulf of Alaska. He noted that SR 5 further
advocates for NPFMC to explore ways to reduce all by-catch in
the other trawl fisheries in the Bering Sea and the @lf of
Al aska. He summarized that the Chinook salnon were inportant to
his region and asked the conmttee to pass SR 5.

3:46: 30 PM

JULI E BONNEY, Executive Director, Al aska Goundfish Data Bank
(AGDB), Kodiak, Al aska, explained that AGDB nenbers were both
shore-side processors and traw catcher vessels that supported
fishery economes in Al aska coastal comunities. She stated that
AGDB was synpathetic to the Chinook sal mon directed users due to
the recent poor Chinook salnon runs. She asserted that the
entire topic of salnmon by-catch was extrenely conplicated, an

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2013



i ssue that stakeholders in the federal fisheries and NPFMC had
spent tinme to reduce and nmitigate by-catch inpact.

M5. BONNEY said it was inmportant for the comrittee to understand
that the @ulf of Alaska and Bering Sea traw industries were
conpletely different, both in ternms of the Chinook sal non that
were caught and the fishery nanagenment pools available for the
fleet to reduce Chinook sal non by-cat ch.

She expl ained that Chinook sal non by-catch taken in the Gulf of
Al aska trawl fisheries were not coastal Western Al aska stock, 99
percent of the 2011 genetic sanples were fromthe GQulf of Al aska
and Pacific coast region. She specified that the Chinook sal non
by-catch in the GQulf of Al aska was as foll ows:

e 40 percent fromBritish Col unbi a,
e 26 percent fromthe Pacific Northwest,
e 14 percent from Sout heast Al aska.

She indicated that the three regions previously noted had a huge
anount of hatchery production with 200 to 250 mllion fry a
year. She explained that AGB' s environnental findings indicated
that Chinook salnmon survival was high in the Pacific Northwest
and Canada. She said fishernen represented by AGDB were seeing
greater nunbers of Chinook salnon on the fishing grounds from
British Col unbi a, Pacific Northwest, and Southeast Al aska
st ocks.

She stated that the other part that was inportant to understand
was that fishernmen in the Gulf of Alaska operated under a race
for fish, which is a perverse environnent for by-catch
reducti ons. She explained that the guy that catches the nost by-
catch potentially catches the nost target fish and mekes the
nost noney.

She summarized that by-catch was a very conplicated issue and
the Gulf of Al aska and the Bering Sea were not the sane.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if Ms. Bonney opposed SR 5.

M5. BONNEY responded that there was a lot of information in SR 5
that was not correct and offered to go line-by-line to make
corrections. She stated that she preferred [HR 6] where the
trawl  industry and NPFMC were conplenmented for all of the
efforts they made. She said AGDB woul d continue to nake efforts.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2013



SENATOR M CCI CHE commented that he was aware of the facts that
Ms. Bonney had brought up. He noted that the CS was identical to
the House version and stated that the changes made m ght nmake
AGDB nore confortabl e.

3:50: 06 PM

STEVEN BRANSCON, Advocate, Crewmran's Associ ation, Kodiak, Al aska,
said the Crewran's Associ ation, Kodi ak, Al aska, represented 1200
intermttent nenbers and the largest faction of the fishing
force and the largest |abor force in the state. He said he
supported SR 5 and addressed the incorrect information NPFMC was
receiving.

He noted being in contact with traw crewran who nentioned deck
| oads of by-catch King Salnon. He asserted that one does not
report by-catch all the way and conpared the practice to drivers
of cars having to ticket thenselves for speeding. He asserted
that there would be a lot fewer speeding tickets if drivers had
to self-ticket.

He noted the new observer program they have seen through random
choosing of boats to observe a reduction in the anount of traw
observation and an increase in the amount of small boat pot-
fishing that are |less damaging fisheries. He said with a |arge
net you could nake |large mstakes in a short anpunt of time. He
pointed out that laws made regarding fisheries should be
acconpani ed by increased observer coverage. He said his colleges
recommended 100 percent observer coverage on the |owdollar,
high by-catch fisheries that would give the scientific and
statistical conmttee better anmmnition to inform NPFMC. He
summarized that laws and |imts nmean nothing w thout observer
cover age.

3:52:37 PM

TERRY HAI NES, representing hinself, Kodiak, Alaska, said he was
a local commercial fisherman and served on the Kodiak Gty
Council. He asserted that one resource should never be traded
for another. He noted concern for high levels of by-catch in
species that were experiencing decreasing abundance. He said it
was inportant to increase the observer coverage in fisheries
where high levels of by-catch were already being observed for
decr eased- abundance species. He stated that 100 percent observer
coverage would provide a nmuch better baseline to increase the
understanding of what was going on. He advised that genetic
sanpling would provide a better |ook at where the sal non were
com ng fromand going. He said he supported SR 5.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- March 29, 2013



3:54:20 PM

BECCA ROBBINS G SCLAIR, Senior Fisheries Advisor, Yukon River
Drai nage Fisheries Association (YRDFA), Anchorage, Al aska, said
YRDFA was a group of subsistence and conmercial fishernmen that
enconpassed the length of the Yukon River in Alaska. She said
YRDFA supported SR 5. She explained the Bering Sea Chinook
sal non by-catch as foll ows:

e Severe declines on the Yukon River over the past five

years;
* Federal fishery disasters have been declared for every year
si nce 2008;

* No commercially directed Chinook salnon fishery for the
past five years;

* Unable to provide the annual anounts necessary for
subsi stence which is designated by the Al aska Board of
Fi sheri es;

e The 2012 subsistence harvest was roughly half of the
hi stori c average.

She stressed that the information was nore than nunbers, but the
i npact extended to people's culture and food on their tables.
She said the cause for the decline was not known, but YRDFA was
faced with controlling what they were able to react to. She
poi nted out that there were reductions in river-run fisheries in
order to enable fish to reach spawning grounds. She stressed
that it was inportant to reduce the [salnon] nortality from by-
catch as well. She comented that the nobst recent genetic
studies indicated that over 70 percent of the Chinook sal non
taken as by-catch was from Wstern Al aska's stocks, virtually
all of which were declining and struggling. She stressed that
mai ntaining the by-catch limt at 60,000 fish as an upper limt
would be absolutely devastating. She sunmarized that YRDFA
supported SR 5 and asked for by-catch reduction.

3:56: 39 PM

DAVE BEEBE, representing hinself, Kupreanof, Al aska, said he was
a conmmercial fisherman for Individual Fishing Quota (IFQ
hal i but, Dungeness crab, and sea cucunbers. He noted that he was
a nenber of the advisory commttee to the North Pacific
Anadr onpbus Fi sh Conm ssion (NPAFC). He stated that his position
with NPAFC had provided him with an opportunity to receive
information directly from individuals such as Eric Volk and
others who were followng [by-catch in Al aska]. He pointed out
that M. Volk and others were profoundly struck by the decline
in Alaska's Chinook salnon populations. He stated that he

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 29, 2013



strongly supported the reductions of Bering Sea and @l f of
Al aska traw fisheries. He said he supported SR 5 and HR 6 in
regards to by-catch reduction. He said that one of the state's
primary obligations was to subsistence cultures and their
extrenme resource dependence upon Chinook salnon. He explained
that due to profound population decline, it was incunbent upon
everyone to |l ook particularly closely at by-catch and waste that
was wel |l documented in the traw fisheries.

SENATOR FAIRCLOUGH asked for M. Beebe to restate his
affiliation.

MR. BEEBE answered that he was speaking for hinself.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH replied that she thought he nentioned NPFMC
and asked if he served on the council.

MR. BEEBE answered that he was on the advisory conmittee to
NPAFC.

3:59: 21 PM
TIM SMTH, President, Nome Fisherman's Association (NFA), None,
Al aska, said NFA was a group of sport, conmmercial and

subsi stence fishernen in the Norton Sound Region. He said he
fully supported SR 5.

He indicated that SR 5 was sonething Al aska needed to do and
commended the legislature for putting it forward. He said he
attended the neetings where NPFMC set the King sal non by-catch-
caps for both the Bering Sea and the Gulf of Al aska. He stated
that he was really discouraged and disappointed with the Al aska
del egates to NPFMC for not being nore active in getting a
reasonabl e cap set. He noted that the resolution's calling for a
[ by- cat ch] reduction from 60,000 to 30,000 was fully
bi ol ogi cal | y supportabl e.

He asserted that Norton Sound had been forgotten until the
important fisheries started to experience the sane problens that
Norton Sound had been experiencing for 30 years. He stated that
the northern Norton Sound region had three King salnon
popul ation. He said in 2012, the three salnon runs were bel ow
100 individuals and noted as foll ows:

* PilgrimRiver had 64 King sal non;

e Boston Creek had not been counted since 2005, the | ast
count was 29 King sal non;

* Kw niuk River had 36 King sal non.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2013



MR. SM TH expl ained that the Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane
(ADFG said it takes 200 pairs of King salnon to be a viable
stock. He noted that the three runs he had nentioned were
bi ol ogically extinct and were as endangered as any King sal non
or salnon population in the U S He said for sone reason Norton
Sound's |ow salnon runs was being mssed. He said the situation
wi th sal non managenent was a real constitutional issue and what
was happening in Norton Sound with King salnon could not be
call ed sustained yield. He asserted that the Al aska Constitution
requi red managenent for sustained yield. He stated that Norton
Sound was at a point where the King sal non popul ati ons were not
even going to survive, |et alone produce any kind of yield.

He said he did not think it was possible to currently harvest
pol | ock w thout destroying King salnon runs and stressed that
anot her way be found. He asserted that he would be fine with not
taking the entire population tact every year. He noted that
pollock were long-lived fish and wuld be available for
harvesting a year |ater. He summarized that the Al aska
Constitution required that King salnon stocks had to be
preserved.

4:02:52 PM

STEPHANI E =~ MADSEN, Executive Di rector, At-sea  Processors
Associ ation (APA), Juneau, Alaska, said APA was one of four
sectors in the Bering Sea pollock fishery. She explained that
APA was the offshore conponent for a fleet that was only all owed
to fish in the Bering Sea.

She informed the conmttee that the Bering Sea's four sectors
included the Comrunity Developnment Quota (CDQ Program which
received 10 percent "off the top,” and the remaining sectors
split between the catcher-processor fleet that APA represented.
She expl ained that the catcher-vessels that delivered to nother-
ships received 10 percent and catcher-shoreside vessels that
enconpassed the inshore-sector received 50 percent of the quota.

She concurred that NPFMC established a high cap of 60,000 [King
salnon]. She detailed that if APA violated the |evel of 47,000
[ by-catch] in any seven years, APA would have to abide with a
47,000 [by-catch-cap] for the remaining life of that action. She
explained that a cap was a way to shut down a fishery. She
asserted that the unique by-catch-cap proposal did not provide
incentive for the fleet and individual vessels to do their best
in every instance, every day.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 29, 2013



M5. MADSEN explained the NPFMC by-catch-cap would allow APA
access to 60,000 in very unusual years wth expectations that
APA could live with a much |ower cap by reducing by-catch in
every level of pollock and sal non abundance. She said APA had to
annual ly neet with NPFMC and denonstrate how its incentives were
wor king. She stated that APA's incentives were approved by the
National Marine Fisheries. She said APA was neeting wth NPFMC
the following week to address how their incentives were worKking
and noted that APA' s second annual report to NPFMC was due April
1

She explained that APA's Bering Sea program for catcher-process
was a by-catch avoidance area. She detailed that APA nonitored
poll ock and Chinook catches and identified by-catch avoidance
areas. She said APA shared information with its fleet. She noted
that vessels that perforned below a certain |evel were excluded
fromthe avoi dance area. She reported that vessels that failed a
test were out of the designated area for one week, a second
failed test nmeant a two week exclusion. She said excluding
vessel s would have a huge inpact on catch-and-process platforns
that required a constant flow She reiterated that [Bering Sea
by-catch] was conplex and she dealt with its challenges on a
dai |l y basi s.

4:05: 58 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked beyond avoiding areas with high King sal non
activities, what practical practices were used to avoid King
sal non by-catch

M5. MADSEN explained that APA wused salnon-excluders that
separated sal non from pol | ock

SENATOR DYSON asked if there were any other nmethods used.

MS. MADSEN answered increased conmmunicati on between the fleet.
She noted that a vessel could be shut down if it exceeded its
limt.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the feedback |oop was shared with the
manager s.

MS. MADSEN answer ed yes.

SENATOR DYSON asked if King salmon information was shared wth
ADFG

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 29, 2013



VB. MADSEN responded that the information was certainly
avai |l abl e, but conceded that she was not sure if ADFG was on a
weekly e-mail |ist.

SENATOR M CCI CHE thanked Ms. Madsen for her presentation. He
said he was hesitant to add the praises that were put in the
resolution, but conceded to being happy to now having them
included. He asserted that SR 5 was not a blane gane and
remarked that APA had done a good job. He enphasized that the
situation with King salnmn was an energency wth thousands of
Al askans out of work or wondering what was going to fill their
freezers. He stated that SR 5 was a strong request for everyone
to work together better to further reduce by-catch. He
enphasi zed that SR 5 should not be viewed as an intent to shut
down Al aska's trawl fisheries. He noted that the traw ers played
an inportant role in getting Al aska's seafood to gl obal markets,
a role that he wanted to see continue. He said he would work
with APA to nmke sure APA continued fishing in addition to
getting every possible King salnon back to the rivers and
restore normal cy.

M5. MADSEN replied that Senator M cciche could rest assured that
her capacity for dealing with the skippers and vessels that
sal non would remain on their mnds every day.

4:09: 01 PM

Rl CKY  GEASE, Executive Director, Kenai Ri ver Sportfishing
Associ ation (KRSA), Soldotna, Alaska, said KRSA was a 501(c)3
fishery conservation organization representing sone of the over
100,000 anglers who liked to fish for King salnon throughout
Sout hcentral Alaska and the rest of Alaska. He said just a
decade ago, the Kenai River King salnon fishery was rated as the
nunber one sport fishery in North Anmerica, an inpressive
statenent for all of the different sport fisheries all across
the country including: Florida, the [Gulf of Mexico], San Diego,
and all of the other places. He said Field and Stream stated
that the Kenai was the "top dog" for fisheries. He disclosed
that the Kenai, Norton Sound, Yukon, Kuskokwim Cook Inlet,
Kodi ak, Copper River, had all seen dramatic declines in Chinook
sal non.

He divulged that ADFG recently dealt with the Chinook salnon
problemin the Cook Inlet by reducing the escapenent goal by one
third for late run Kenai River King salnon. He stated that KRSA
did not agree with ADFG s decision because KRSA believed the
probl em was further exasperated in the long term He asserted
t hat managenent plans were developed in tinmes of high abundance

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 29, 2013



and reevaluation was required to address |ow abundance. He
stated that NPFMC should take the sanme approach and reeval uate
by-catch imts for the Bering Sea and the Gulf of Al aska.

MR. CGEASE said the Bering Sea had many nore tools to reduce
Chi nook salnon by-catch that could be used in the @lf of
Al aska. He suggested that catch-shares could be introduced into
the @ulf of Alaska. He conceded that catch-shares would be
controversial in the @lf of Al aska fisheries. He enphasized
that the time had cone to bite the bullet due to the King
salmon's rapid decline in Southcentral Alaska. He explained that
Ki ng sal non from Sout hcentral Al aska accounted for 30 percent of
the Gulf of Alaska's catch. He stressed that even thousands of
fish could make a difference.

He recomended that three points be added to SR 5 as foll ows:

1. Encourage NPFMC to obtain by-catch research data from the
observer program for: age, size, length, fat content,
stomach content to identify food source, and how robust the
sal non were at the one to three year old stages.

2. Ascertain harvest data from the observer program in the
@l f of Alaska. He conceded that people would have to be
pl aced on vessels and that was not desired. He suggested
using tinme-stanped video data to develop hot-spot
capabilities that was used in the Bering Sea.

3. Initiate incentives used in the Bering Sea by trading
guot as between vessels to discourage racing to fish and not
bei ng rewarded for having high King sal non by-catch

SENATOR M CClI CHE said he would talk to M. Gease on sonme of the
specific data possibilities on a limted basis to see what m ght
fit. He pointed out that SR 5 had a zero fiscal note.

CHAIR G ESSEL stated that finding no further comrents, public
testi nony was cl osed.

4:13: 04 PM

SENATOR DYSON noved that the commttee nove CS for SR 5, version
C, fromcomittee with individual recommendations with attached
fiscal note(s).

CHAIR G ESSEL announced that w thout objection, CSSR 5(RES)
noved fromthe Senate Resources Standing Commttee.

4:13: 33 PM
CHAI R d ESSEL announced that the commttee would stand at ease.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 29, 2013



Presentati on: AGDC Fi nanci ng and Oamershi p Model s Associ at ed
Wth Gas Megaprojects

4:15: 36 PM

CHAIR G ESSEL called the commttee back to order and announced
t he next order of business on the agenda would be a presentation
by the Al aska Gasline Developnent Corporation (AGDC) on the
financi ng and ownershi p nodel s associ ated wi th negaprojects.

4:15:58 PM

JOE DUBLER, Vice President and Chief Financial Oficer, Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC), Anchorage, Al aska,
stated that he would provide a brief overview of tariffs. He
said there were three basic factors that affected tariffs

capital expenditures, operating expenditures, and throughput
volune. He explained that the tariff calculation itself was
quite conplicated, but the concept was sinple. He enphasized
that tariffs were forward-looking projections. He said the
intent was to figure out the foll ow ng:

e How nmuch the |ine was cost to operate and buil d;

* How much was going through the line in order to allocate
cost to the throughput.

He said the throughput volunme was the nost self-explanatory and
was defined as the anobunt of gas that was anticipated to be
shi pped through the Iine.

He stated that the capital expenditure nunber was the allowable
non-operating cost of construction and included: engineering,
permtting, pipe purchase and facilities purchase cost. The
capital expenditures were the pre-operational costs incurred in
order to get the facilities and the pipeline up and running.

He explained that the operating expenditures i ncl uded:
operations, nmaintenance, capital expenditures depreciation over
the depreciable Iife, taxes, and interest expenses.

He expl ained that the robust tariff nodel used for AGDC s Al aska
Stand Alone Pipeline (ASAP) was sinply a forward |ooking pro
forma incone statenment that calculated the project's projected
net incone. He specified that the net inconme equaled the equity
capital contribution times the return on equity. The process was
iterative where the calculation ran nultiple iterations to cone
up with a tariff that covered all costs and return on equity to
equity investors in the pipeline. He sumarized that the tariff

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 29, 2013



nodel was a pretty sinple concept derived froma fairly conplex
spr eadsheet .

4:18:46 PM

VR. DUBLER explained that hi s presentati on, " Fi nanci ng
Megaprojects,” would provide the commttee with an idea of how
| arge projects were financed. He said the objective of financing
any project was to achieve the |owest possible cost. He stated
that his strategy was to fornmulate financing fromthe investor's
standpoint since investors were the people that would buy the
bonds. He explained that a better price was achieved when
selling sonmething that a buyer wanted rather than selling
sonmething you wanted to sell. He said AGC tried to structure a
financing package to meke it as attractive to investors as
possible by nmeeting with investors and bankers to find out who
was out there and what they were | ooking for.

He said there were typically two sources of funding for a
project, equity and debt. Equity was normally the first dollars
into a project, followed up by debt on the backside. He
explained that both equity and debt had advantages and
di sadvantages. Rates of return for both equity and debt were
determ ned based upon several factors that essentially rewarded
investors for taking risk. The old classic financial nodel for
risk-reward: you increase your risk, you increase your reward.
He said the fornmula he used was the investnment yield equal ed the
inflation rate, which was a baseline that conpensated people for
the tinme-value of noney, plus a risk factor, plus a liquidity
factor, and that provided what an investor was |ooking for in a
yield on a security. He said the estimated inflation rate was a
benchmark based upon Treasury bills (T-bill); considered a risk
free and highly liquid security. The interest rate on a T-Bill
was consi dered roughly equivalent to the inflation rate that the
mar ket was esti mati ng.

4:21:26 PM

He said the inflation-conponent of an interest rate represented
the time-value of noney; a dollar today was worth nore than a
dollar tonmorrow. The second factor was risk and the conponent
represented the risk that a borrower would default or not repay
the debt as agreed with the issuer. He said a good exanple was
an individual's personal credit score, the higher the score the
| oner their nortgage rate.

He said the liquidity factor was a conponent representing the

risk that an investor would not be able to readily exchange
their investnent for cash if needed. Investnents traded on

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- March 29, 2013



normal exchanges and investment-grade bonds were usually fairly
liquid. Some stocks could be liquid, junk bonds and equity
shares in projects such as ASAP were not very liquid. He
referred to the recent neltdown in the auction rate securities
mar ket and the effect on liquidity. He explained that auction
rate securities did not have any definite liquidity and relied
upon frequent auctions for investors to bid on bonds. He said
liquidity issues occurred when people quit bidding on bonds and
t he market crashed.

MR. DUBLER said equity financing was riskier and costlier than
debt financing because equity investors typically are the first
ones to put dollars into a project. Long term bond holders do
not want to take a lot of conpletion risk. For exanple, he noted
t he "Whoops Bonds" in Washington where a project was conpleted
but the facility was never actually operated. Investors in the
project lost everything and there may have been bondhol ders that
never got anything out of their investnent, either. Equity
shares wunfortunately are not very liquid and are nuch nore
difficult to sell than a bond issued for the sanme project. He
expl ai ned that bonds could be traded on nost narkets.

4:25:52 PM

It is advantageous to keep the equity portion of the financing
as small as possible and the debt portion as |arge possible,
within reason; it's nore of a balancing act than a science,
depending on the project. Equity financing options (not 100
percent of the whole project) could go anywhere from 100 percent
state-ownership to 100 percent private-ownership (a 75/25 split
would equate to 75 percent state-ownership and 25 percent
private ownership).

MR. DUBLER said one of the advantages to a state-owned pipeline
was that the state would have nore control over its conponents
and would be able to dictate the structure, type of gas, and
everything to do with the pipeline. But sone nmight say that a
totally stated-owned AGDC project would be a disadvantage due to
i ncidences in the past where state-run projects did not turn out
so wel | .

4:27:34 PM

MR. DUBLER noted that from the beginning, the custoners would
determ ne what goes through the pipeline and that the private
sector was a little better at judging custoners, because that
was the business they were in. He said the private sector would

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 29, 2013



determine how big the pipe was, the throughput required for
custoners, and off-take pl acenents.

SENATOR DYSON asked if control over conponents also neant how
the construction was done and project managenent.

MR. DUBLER answered yes. He said the private sector would
control all aspects of a project.

SENATOR DYSON stated that the final inportant conponent was
whet her or not the gasline would be a common carrier pipeline
and asked who controls who can get on the on-ranp and off-ranp
for the project.

MR. DUBLER replied that if the state owned the pipeline, subject
to the state laws that were in place at the tine, they would be
able to control the inputs or outputs.

SENATOR DYSON replied that he understood commpn versus contract
carriage, but he was worried about a de facto nonopoly for the
pi pel i ne.

MR. DUBLER answered that any type of wutility or transportation
of gas or electricity would typically have a nonopoly. He
explained that two electric lines wuld not run to the sanme
house and that was why sone type of regulation was fairly
common. He continued that interstate pipelines are regul ated by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Comm ssion (FERC) and intrastate
pi pelines were typically regulated by the Regul atory Conm ssion
of Al aska (RCA).

SENATOR DYSON noted that the RCA did not control the Trans-
Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS) and asked if the pipeline was
considered a utility. He suggested that M. Dubler was thinking
that the pipeline would be in the category of supplying energy
to Al askans and not exporting gas.

4:31:23 PM

MR. DUBLER answered that the ASAP would just be a transm ssion
line transporting gas from the North Slope to Fairbanks and
Sout hcentral, but that he was instructed to not coment on
regul atory issues.

SENATOR DYSON said he tal ked about the advantages of state and

private owned, but he didn't see the bullet that says whether it
is open or restricted access.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- March 29, 2013



MR. DUBLER said the main advantage to a privately owned pipeline
is that the private sector is probably best equipped to own and
operate them because they do it for a living. That is why there
is some hesitation to get the state involved, but then the
di sadvantage to that would be that the state |oses control over
nost aspects of the operation and construction of the line that
aren't regul ated by current | aws.

SENATOR MCCICHE clarified that there wuld be a federa
jurisdictional conponent to any "192 Line," as well, even if
FERC is not involved in the regul ation.

MR. DUBLER agreed that there are a lot of regulations and
permts on this pipeline; it's actually mnd-nunbing. He then
turned the debt financing portion of the presentation over to
Ms. Rodel | .

ANGELA RODELL, Deputy Conmmi ssioner, Al aska Departnent of Revenue
(DOR), Juneau, Al aska, said that a nunber of different vehicles
are available for the debt portion of a project and she would
focus on three of the nobst comon: general obligation bonds
(GO, project finance or revenue bonds, and the state's noral
obl i gati on.

She said the general obligation bonds would obviously benefit
from the state's rating, which is AAA from all three rating
agencies. Under this scenario the state would enjoy an extrenely
| ow cost of funds with a very straight forward credit analysis,
because the rating agencies would be |ooking straight to the
state coffers for debt repaynment. The downside to GO bonds is
the requirenent for voter approval and that nakes them nore
challenging to get in the first place. |If they are approved,
theoretically, any appropriations for debt could potentially be
offset by creating an entity wth the agreenment to return
revenues back to the state general fund to cover the debt
servi ce.

She explained that project financing wth revenue bonds
typically has no direct inpact on the state and was | ooked at
for a standal one project. Revenues would be estinmated using the
shi pper contracts and a rating would be assessed. The bonds
woul d be issued up to the amount of risk, |everage, and coverage
that investors would be willing to take. The revenues received
woul d be used to directly repay to the bond investors.

4:34:58 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 29, 2013



M5. RODELL said that state noral obligation bonding is actually
credit enhancenent to the revenue bond project finance construct
and that the term "noral obligation" does not exist in
legislation or state statutes. "Mral obligation" is a |egal
construct that the state used to create a capital reserve fund,
to be maintained above a certain dollar amount, so that it could
be made available to an entity. Should the fund fall below the
requi red amount, the issuer (the state) would be obligated to go
back to the legislature and request repl eni shnment . The
obligation to request replenishnent is, in fact, the "noral
obligation.™

There is no legal or binding requirenent on the legislature to
fund the replenishment request, M. Rodell explained, but there
woul d be an expectation by the investors for the state to step
up and honor its request and show evidence of support for the
project. The result would be for investors to pay nore or take
| ower interest rates in return for the credit enhancenment. It is
a definite financial benefit to the issuers, but it does affect
the state's credit rating, because it was viewed as a real
obl i gati on.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH stated that the committee did not have a bill
in front of it and noted that the Knik Arm Bridge and Toll
Authority (KABATA) was going to be before the Senate Finance
Commttee with "state noral obligation" listed in its financing
package. She asked if the KABATA financing package could affect
the state's bond rating.

M5. RODELL answered that KABATA s financing package would not
affect the state's ratings at present, but "noral obligation”
would conme into play as state debt when an appropriation was
made to honor an obligation. She said the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) kept track of exactly how nmuch outstanding noral
obligation debt the state had and its potential inpact on
overall finances in order to explain to rating agencies that
t hey know exactly what was going on with state assets and debt
capacity.

4:38:26 PM

SENATOR M CCICHE clarified that the project financing would
technically not have an inpact on the state and asked if she
neant it would use the state's credit rating to obtain GO bond
financing like a toll bridge with cars paying the toll. It would
be standal one credit that doesn't hit the general fund?

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- March 29, 2013



M5. RODELL answered that was correct and that investors would
only allow a project to issue no nore debt that they think the
revenues wll support. You may have authorization to issue $1
billion for a pipeline, but if all the revenue assessnents point
to raising enough to support only $200 nmillion in debt, the
mar ket would only allow $200 million worth to be sol d.

The presentation cane back to M. Dubler who said project
finance optim zation as about coming up with the |owest overal
cost of funds to finance a project and the goal is to strike an
appropriate bal ance between debt and equity. The quandary wth
these projects is that investors wanted nore debt and debt
people want nore equity; and having either of those situations
makes the other feel nore secure. The bal ance is needed, because
of the different yields. A typical yield on a pipeline project
simlar to ASAP is in the 10 to 13 percent range and debt is in
the 4.5 to 7 percent range, so there is a very large difference
in the costs. And because of that difference, one wants to
mnimze the 10 to 13 percent range and maximze to 4.5 to 7
percent range.

4:40: 58 PM
MR. DUBLER said they had debated ownership nodels and concl uded
that it will probably end up with each of the entities having a

pro-rata share of ownership commensurate with the anmpunt of gas
they are shipping. For exanple, if the state has an eighth
percent (its royalty percentage of the gas) contribution, then
it would be contributing an eighth to the equity of the line. If
the builder, the owner-operator, or one of the other shippers
woul d participate, that would allow them a percentage of contro
in the line equal to the anobunt of gas they are commtting to
the project. But when they commit their gas to the project, they
are taking a risk; if the prelimnary tariff is projected to be
$9 and it conmes back at $12, that is a problem So they are
taking a risk in conmtting their gas and they want to have sone
control over that process.

MR. DUBLER concluded that the target capital structure for both
the All-Al askan Pipeline (APP) and the Denali pipelines is 75/25
debt-to-equity and that seens to be a bal ance that works.

CHAI R G ESSEL t hanked the presenters.
4:43: 39 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair G essel adjourned the Senate Resources Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting at 4:44 p.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- March 29, 2013



